ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 15, 2011
8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 71

“"An Act relating to the duration of a regular session of the
|l egislature and to certain procedures relating to the
| egi sl ature; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 33(STA)
"An Act relating to the disposition of remains of a nenber of
the arned forces if the nenber dies while in a duty status."

- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 92
"An Act relating to special request Lao veteran registration
pl ates; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 71

SHORT TI TLE: LEQ SLATI VE SESSI ON LI M T/ PROCEDURES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON, CGRUENBERG, EDGVON

01/18/ 11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 15, 2011



01/18/ 11
01/18/ 11
01/ 26/ 11
01/ 26/ 11
01/ 26/ 11
02/ 15/ 11

BILL: SB 33

32332

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: DI SPOSI TI ON OF SERVI CE MEMBERS' REMAI NS

SPONSOR( s) :

01/19/ 11
01/ 19/ 11
01/19/ 11
01/ 25/ 11
01/ 25/ 11
01/ 25/ 11
01/ 27/ 11
01/ 27/ 11
01/ 27/ 11
01/ 28/ 11
01/ 28/ 11

01/31/ 11
01/31/ 11
01/31/ 11
02/ 02/ 11
02/02/ 11
02/ 02/ 11
02/ 04/ 11
02/ 04/ 11

02/ 07/ 11
02/ 07/ 11
02/ 08/ 11
02/ 08/ 11
02/ 09/ 11
02/ 09/ 11
02/ 15/ 11

BILL: HB 92

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI, PASKVAN, COCHI LL

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/14/11

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

STA, JUD

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Heard & Held

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSB 33(STA) Qut of Conmittee

M NUTE( STA)
STA RPT CS 5DP  NEWTITLE
DP:  WELECHOMSKI, KOOKESH,  PASKVAN,

MEYER, G ESSEL

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
Moved CSSB 33(STA) Qut of Committee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS(STA) 4DP

DP: FRENCH, W ELECHOWEKI PASKVAN,
MCGUI RE

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  CSSB 33( STA)

M.V AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Schedul ed But Not Heard

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

STA

STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: LAO VETERANS LI CENSE PLATES

SPONSOR( s) :

01/18/ 11
01/18/11
01/18/ 11

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

(H
(H
(H

REPRESENTATI VE(s) PETERSEN

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 14/ 11
READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

- 2- February 15, 2011



02/ 15/ 11 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
W TNESS REG STER

KATI E KOESTER, St aff

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Presented SSHB 71 on behalf of
Representative Seaton, joint prime sponsor.

SHANE M LLER, Fi nance Manager

Account i ng

Legi sl ative Adm nistrative Services

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
on SSHB 71.

M CHAEL CAULFI ELD, Intern

Senator Bill W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 33 on behalf of Senator
W el echowski, joint prinme sponsor.

MARK SAN SOUCI, Regi onal Liaison Northwest

Def ense State Liaison Ofice

O fice of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense

Deputy Under Secretary of Defense (Mlitary Conmmunity and Famly
Pol i cy)

U. S. Departnent of Defense (DoD)

Tacoma, WAshi ngton

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on SB
33.

Rl C DAVI DGE

Vi et nam Vet erans of Aneri ca;

Al aska Vet erans Foundati on

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SB 33.

DAVI D BREMVER, St af f
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 15, 2011



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded information about HB 92 on behal f
of Representative Petersen, sponsor.

VH TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
92.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:07: 03 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:07 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton

P. WIlson, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representati ves Johansen and Guenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 71-LEQ SLATI VE SESSI ON LI M T/ PROCEDURES

8:07:54 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the first order of Dbusiness was
SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 71, "An Act relating to
the duration of a regular session of the |egislature.”

8:08: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, as joint prinme sponsor, said SSHB 71
woul d repeal AS 24.05.150(b).

8:08: 34 AM

KATI E KCESTER, Staff, Representative Paul Seaton, Alaska State
Legislature, presented SSHB 71 on behalf of Representative
Seaton, joint prinme sponsor. She said the proposed |egislation
woul d repeal the 90-day session, which was passed by ball ot
initiative in 2005. She reviewed that in 2007, House Bill 171
directed Legislative Council to appoint a commttee to evaluate
the 90-day session. The nmenbers of that commttee were
Representative Max G uenberg, Representative Bryce Edgnon, and
Representati ve Paul Seaton, all of whom are joint prinme sponsors
of SSHB 71, having concluded from their evaluation that the 90-
day session should be repeal ed. She said this conclusion was
supported by a survey, in which 31 nenbers of the House showed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 15, 2011



support of repealing the 90-day session. That survey is
available in the commttee packet. She related that further
information regarding the survey is available on Representative
Seaton's web site.

8:10: 49 AM

M5. KCESTER began a slide presentation, which first highlighted
questions asked in the aforenentioned survey. Question 13 asked
if the respondents believe that changing to a 90-day session
from a 120-day session cut down on the Legislature's operating
costs; 92.9 percent of the respondents answered no. Question
14 asked the respondents if they believe that they and their
staff are able to comunicate with their constituents as well
during a 90-day session; 83.3 percent said no. Question 18
asked if the respondents feel that a 90-day session provides
less time to schedule personal neetings wth constituents and
menbers of the public during session; 93.3 percent said yes.
Ms. Koester said coments received regarding question 18
included that the 90-day session gives nore power to those who
know "the inner workings of the system"” A further coment was
that there was less tine to neet with other representatives.

M5. KOESTER noved on to question 21, which asked respondents if
they believe that the 90-day session allows their personal
legislation to be adequately evaluated by commttees of
referral; 90 percent answered no. Question 31 asked respondents
if they see a value in conparing Alaska with other states wth
sessions shorter than 120 days, considering the issues dealt
with by the Al aska State Legislature; 83.3 percent said no.
Question 33 asked respondents if they believe that decreasing
the tinme that the legislature is convened to 90 days cedes sone
of the power of the legislature to the governor or the
bur eaucracy; 86.2 percent said yes.

8:14: 07 AM

M5. KCESTER S slide presentation next depicted a series of
charts [included in the conmmttee packet]. The first chart
showed | egi sl ation introduced and passed from 1979 through 2010.
She pointed to the years 2007-2008 and 2009-2010, and said there
was only a difference of four in ternms of bills that passed.
She further pointed out that there has not been a substanti al
change in the nunber of Dbills introduced or passed when
conparing the 120-day session with the 90-day session.

8:15: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 15, 2011



M5. KCESTER, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, stated her understanding that [the reason there were
over 2,100 bills introduced between 1981 and 1982] is because
there was at that tinme no constitutional limt on the nunber of
bills that could be introduced. She said the amount of bills
i ntroduced dropped remarkably by the 1990s, so it could be said
that the 120-day session did curtail the anmount of |egislation
i nt roduced.

8:16: 07 AM

M5. KOESTER stated that one of the argunents used in support of
a 90-day session was that it would encourage nore people to run
for office, because the candidate would not have to spend as
much time away from his/her job and famly. However, she
hi ghlighted the chart |abeled "Total Candidates Filed For Al aska
State House & Senate 2000-2010," which shows that there has been
a steady decrease in the nunber of candidates running for
of fice. She turned to another chart |abeled "Legislative
Sessions Since Statehood - Session Lengths in Days" and noted
that it also shows the length of special sessions held during
that time period. She drew attention to a nenorandum dated
2/ 1/ 2011, from Legislative Legal and Research Services, which
shows how t hings have changed since the initiation of the 90-day

sessi ons. Referring once again to the slides, she noted that
the next chart shows "State Legislatures' Limts to Regular
Session Lengths (Days),” and Alaska falls sonewhere in the

mddle with its 180 biennial session days.

M5. KOESTER said if the 90-day session is repealed, the state
would revert back to the 120-day session provided for in the
state's constitution, but would not preclude the |egislature
fromneeting for | ess than 120 days.

8:19: 01 AM

M5. KOESTER directed attention to the fiscal note, prepared by
Shane MIller of the Admnistrative Services D vision, dated
1/ 31/ 11. She said the estimated cost of SSHB 71 would be
approxi mately $800,000 for the extra 30 days of session;
however, she explained that that anount of nobney was never
removed, but instead was put into a budget to cover special
sessions. She said a special session can be nore expensive than
a regul ar session.

8:23:32 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 15, 2011



SHANE M LLER, Fi nance Manager , Account i ng, Legi sl ative
Adm ni strative Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, in response
to a question from Representative Guenberg, offered his
under standi ng that when the vote went into effect to change to a
90- day session, the thought was that there would be nore special
sessions, which is why the extra noney that would have been used
in a 120-day session was put aside. He stated his further
understanding that there were indeed nore special sessions as a
result of the 90-day session. Prior to that the |egislature had
to approve additional funding for special sessions.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said presumably if logic is that a
shorter session wll yield nore and nore special sessions that
are expensive, then conversely a |longer session should yield
fewer special sessions. He questioned why that is not reflected
in the fiscal note.

8:25:12 AM
REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said there are conmmttees that neet

during the interimthat would not have done so when session was
| onger.

8:.26: 23 AM

MR MLLER, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said he does not know exactly what he neans by
"savings." He explained that the fiscal note was based on what

the costs were for the 2010 session, broken out into a daily
rate, and then that nunber was used to "run it back out 30 nore
days. "

8:26: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to a sentence in the
second paragraph of the fiscal note analysis, which read:

It is the intent of House Leadership that funding for
the additional 30 days be included in this fiscal note
and the special session contingency account remain to
provi de adequate funding for future special sessions.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON concl uded that no one should presune that
the Legislative Affairs Agency took it upon itself to put noney
in a special account. He said he thinks that the conmittee
should not try to draw direct correlations between the costs and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 15, 2011



benefits. He said it is apparent that the costs for specia
sessions are higher, and there have been nore special sessions
[foll ow ng 90-day sessions]. He said the idea that the 90-day
session would save noney is being called into question; it has
not been a cost savings.

CHAIR LYNN added that it cannot be said that 90 days is |ess
expensi ve just because | ess salaries and per diem are paid.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON said another cost factor is that
| egislative staff used to have to pay their transportation costs
to and from Juneau, but because it becane nore difficult to find
staff wlling to cone to Juneau for a 90-day session,
Legi sl ative Council changed the requirenents so that the
| egi sl ature pays for the transportation cost of its staff.

CHAIR LYNN commented that it is difficult to find good staff no
matter how many days the session lasts, but indicated that [a
90- day session] "narrows the pool."

8:31:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN prefaced his remark by relaying that he
has not worked as a legislator during a 120-day session. He
then said he heard that the overlap of the 120-day session with
the tourist season nade finding housing difficult.

CHAI R LYNN enphasi zed that the inportant point of focus should
be how well the |egislature serves its constituents.

8:33:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regarding the fiscal note, cited AS
24.08. 035, which addresses fiscal notes. He paraphrased the
first sentence of AS 24.08.035(a), which read as foll ows:

(a) Before a  bill or resol ution, except an
appropriation bill, is reported from the conmttee of
first referral, there shall be attached to the bill a

fiscal note containing an estinate of the anount of
the appropriation increase or decrease that would

result from enactnment of the bill for the current
fiscal year and five succeeding fiscal years or, if
the bill has no fiscal inpact, a statenent to that

effect shall be attached.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i nterpreted that the requirement of the
law is that the fiscal note should be limted to the anount of
change that is caused by the bill. He then read the sentence
from the second paragraph of the fiscal note referred to by
Representative Seaton [text provided previously]. He stated,
"It sounds like the additional noney ... doesn't result fromthe
bill itself but from the choice of House |eadership to keep the
speci al contingency account. That's a managenent deci sion that
doesn't result from the bill and doesn't neet the statutory
requirenent." He asked M. MIler for comment.

MR. M LLER responded that since the bill restores the session to
120 days, the fiscal note, "per guidance we had from House
| eadership,” reflects the cost of restoring the extra 30 days to
sessi on.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the fiscal note would still be
$864, 000 if that special account had not been kept alive.

MR. M LLER said he would have to get back to the commttee with
that information

8:36: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said she does not think that
information is rel evant, because "the decision was nade ... when
we started havi ng 90-day sessions.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded that the reason that decision
was nade was because |eadership foresaw an increase in the
nunber of special sessions as a result of the shortened regul ar
sessi on. He said, "That assunption would no longer be true if
we have a |onger regular session. So, there's no need for the
speci al contingency fund, presumably because we'll have enough
time."

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON countered that the reason there is no
increase in the fiscal note is that the sane noney that was put
aside for special session would now be used for a |onger regular
session, so, "there's no increase in noney."

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he agrees, but observed that the
fiscal note seens to be for an additional $864, 000.

MR. MLLER said the fiscal note is "an increnent for $846, 000."

He then pointed to the previously quoted sentence in the second
paragraph of the fiscal analysis and said it specifies that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 15, 2011



House | eadership wants that noney to remain in the contingency
account to cover future special sessions.

8:38: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN opined that it is not possible to
surm se what was in the mnds of those who nmade the decisions at
the time they were made, so he doesn't understand why the
commttee is wasting tinme on this discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON concurred with Representative Johansen
8:39: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN referred to the chart show ng the nunber
of legislative sessions and special sessions since statehood and
observed that during the years when there was a 120-day
| egi sl ative session, there were 25 special sessions in 20 years.
He said he does not see a correlation between the length of
sessions and whether there are special sessions.

CHAI R LYNN sai d speci al sessions are unpredictable.

8:40: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative P. W] son,
said under SSHB 71 the l|legislature would return to the | ength of

session witten in the constitution, which is a maximum of 120
days after the convening of session, which nmeans a naxi mum t ot al

nunber of 121 days. In response to Chair Lynn, he said the
effective date of the bill would be the next |egislative session
in January.
8.42:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER directed attention to the graph show ng
the total number of candidates who filed for the Al aska State
House and Senate from 2000-2010, and he noted that the nunbers
dropped steadily during those years. He indicated that he
thinks it would be an exaggeration to say that the entire reason
for that decrease is because of the 90-day session, and he asked
Representative Seaton to coment.

8:43:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that the chart is just part of
the data that gathered. He said although it does not prove that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 15, 2011



the decline in nunbers of those running for office was caused by
the 90-day session, it certainly proves that the 90-day session
did not aid in increasing those nunbers.

8:45: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to a copy [included in the
commttee packet] of Ballot Measure 1 [as presented in the
Division of Elections' voter information panphlet], regarding
the 90-day session. He cited an excerpt of the statenent in
support of Ballot Measure 1, witten by Senator Tom Wagoner, who
guot ed The Juneau Enpire as foll ows:

"Reducing the time away from famly and other work
also mght encourage people to run for office.
Conmpetition and choice only helps the denocratic
process and ultimately mght boost the caliber of
candi dates. "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG then related that the |anguage that
woul d be repealed by the proposed SSHB 71 is in the ballot
| anguage and read as foll ows:

Section 1. AS 24.05.150 is anended by adding a new
subsection to read:

(b) The legislature shall adjourn from a regular
session within 90 consecutive cal endar days, including
the day the legislature first convenes in that regular
sessi on.

8:46: 52 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:47:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he does not think the overlap in
the legislative session and the tourist season would be
probl ematic for Juneau.

8:47:53 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he supports passage of SSHB 71. He

tal ked about the inportance of keeping balance between al
branches of governnment and protecting the citizens of Al aska.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 15, 2011



He enphasized the inportance of the extra 30 days of session
because it takes tine to learn how to work wthin the
| egi slature and get the job done.

8:51: 02 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON relayed that having served as a
| egislator during both the 120-day and 90-day sessions, she has
found it is nmuch harder to pass a bill within a shorter session.
She further pointed out that |egislation can be alive for a two-
year period, which neans that 60 days, not 30, are not available
to work on legislation, hear from constituents, or conmunicate
with other |egislators when 90-day sessions are in play. She
concluded that less tinme vetting bills leads to nore unintended
consequences.

CHAI R LYNN concurr ed.
8:53: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he does not disagree wth the
argunents that have been made, but finds it difficult to vote
agai nst the people of Al aska who voted for the 90-day session.

8:54:44 AM

CHAIR LYNN proffered that |egislators are subject to the will of
the people and that that will is reflected by who gets elected
every two years to the House.

8:55: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG opined that 1in three years the
| egislature has given the 90-day session a good try, which has
all owed constituents to see how it works. He said a vast
majority of his constituents understand that the |legislature
needs tinme to do a professional job. Regardi ng the conparison
of Alaska's legislature to that of other states, he said Al aska
has vast resources to manage and great distances to span. He
stated his support of the bill.

8:57: 50 AM

CHAIR LYNN remarked that a |onger session provides no persona
benefits to | egislators.

8:58: 53 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Alaska has a robust initiative
process. He said an initiative is just another way of creating
statute, except that the initiative enpowers the people and

cannot be repealed for two years. He echoed Representative
Gruenberg's statenent that the 90-day session has been in place
for three years. He directed attention to question 36 on page

14 of the aforenentioned survey, which read as foll ows:

Taking into account the effect of the 90-day session
on all aspects of the legislative process, does the
fact that the session length was established by the
initiative process effect [sic] your wllingness to
change the session | ength?

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that 73.3 percent of the
respondents answered yes to that question. He said, "The
recommendation that has cone forward to stinmulate this bill is
the recommendation that canme out of the majority of the House
respondents.”

9:01:45 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he thinks many | egislators have heard fromtheir
constituents that they want the legislature to return to the
120- day sessi on.

9:02: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report SSHB 71 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, SSHB 71 was reported out of
t he House State Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

SB 33- DI SPCSI TI ON OF SERVI CE MEMBERS' REMAI NS

9:02: 39 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was CS FCOR
SENATE BILL NO 33(STA), "An Act relating to the disposition of
remai ns of a nenber of the arned forces if the nmenber dies while
in a duty status.”

9: 02: 57 AM

M CHAEL CAULFIELD, Intern, Senator Bill Welechowski, Al aska
State Legislature, presented SB 33 on behalf of Senator

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 15, 2011



W el echowski, joint prine sponsor. He stated that it 1is
inportant to treat those on active duty in the mlitary wth
respect, especially in honoring their final wishes in the event
of their tragic death while on active duty. M. Caulfield said
the U S. Departnent of Defense (DoD) requires active duty
service nmenbers, reservists, and National Guard nenbers to
conplete a Record of Enmergency Data, called a DD Form 93,
annually or prior to deploynent, in which the service nenber
stipul ates who should nmanage their remains in the event of their
deat h. The U S. Coast CGuard, which falls outside the US.
Department of Defense, but follows the sane federal statutes,
has its owm form the Designation of Beneficiaries and Record of
Emergency Data or CG 2020D.

MR. CAULFIELD said many states, including Al aska, do not conply
with these forns because no |aws exist that recognize a |egal

desi gnee as the person in charge of renains. | nstead, he said,
they default to a predetermned list, generally starting with a
spouse. Clearly a name on a form differing from one on the

default list can lead to disputes when both parties wsh to have
authority over the remains. He said this situation can draw out
an al ready pai nful process of nourning and burial .

MR. CAULFI ELD said SB 33 would solve this problem by anending
Al aska's statutes so that the person on the formis recognized
as the primary nmanager of the renains. He said this will not
only stop disputes over who should have the authority, but also
shoul d protect against the worst-case scenario when no one can
be found to deal with the renains. He noted that 20 states
already have laws that conmply wth the federal form and
adopting SB 33 would nean that Alaska's soldiers' remains are
handl ed by the people they choose. M. Caulfield relayed that
SB 33 is supported by the Al aska Veterans Association, the
Ofice of the Deputy Undersecretary of Defense, the Al aska
Chapter of Vietnam Veterans of America, and the National Funeral
Directors Association. He urged the commttee to support SB 33.

9:05: 28 AM

MR. CAULFIELD, in response to Representative G uenberg, said he
is not anare of any stated opposition to SB 33.

9: 05:49 AM
MR. CAULFIELD, in response to Representative P. WIlson, said if

a husband who is estranged from his wife goes overseas to serve
in active duty, finds sonmeone &else to designate to be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 15, 2011



responsible for his remains, and is killed while on active duty,
then the person he designated would be in charge, not the
estranged wife.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said sonetinmes a mlitary person m ght
go overseas to serve on active duty and, while there, designate
sonmeone el se without telling his/her spouse back hone. She said
this does happen and can be devastating to the spouse back hone.
She asked what woul d happen under that scenari o.

MR. CAULFI ELD said he would have to defer that question to Mark
San Souci of the U S. Departnent of Defense, but indicated that
the bottomline is to honor the wishes of the soldier.

9: 08: 58 AM

CHAIR LYNN said it seenms to himthat a person serving on active
duty in the mlitary has the nost right of anyone to choose who
will be responsible for his/her remains in the event of his/her
deat h.

9:10: 15 AM

MARK SAN SOUCI, Regional Liaison Northwest, Defense State
Liaison Ofice, Ofice of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of
Def ense, Deputy Under Secretary of Defense (Mlitary Comrunity
and Famly Policy), US. Departnment of Defense (DoD), stated
that the DD Form 93 allows the service nenber to choose between
a surviving spouse, a blood relative, or an adopted relative
therefore, the case that Representative P. WIson described
coul d not happen. The person could choose a brother rather than
a spouse. In response to the question asked by Representative
Petersen, he offered his understanding that the mlitary does
not have an obligation to notify the former designee when the
active duty mlitary person chooses anot her designee.

9:12: 51 AM

RIC DAVIDGE, Vietnam Veterans of Anerica; Alaska Veterans
Foundation, said he has been actively involved with Senator
W el echowski on SB 33, particularly as chair of the Al aska
Vet erans Foundation. He related that |ast year there was a two-
tour marine who died in his hone, and next of kin could not be
found, so the Al aska Veterans Foundation held of service for him
with an honor guard. He expressed delight that the state is
making an effort to conme into conpliance with federal fornms. He
said every nenber of the mlitary nust update this form annually

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 15, 2011



and when going overseas to serve in active duty; therefore, he
said he hopes the forns best reflect the intention of the
menber.

9:14: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the issue of remains is highly
personal, and choices are made such as whether to be buried or
cremated, and whether to donate organs. He asked if federal |aw
trunps state law when a soldier wites a wll designating
sonmeone other than those persons allowed by the federal
government to be in charge of his/her renains.

MR SAN SOUCI replied that the aforenentioned forns are

congressionally nandated, whereas a wll, which nay even be
outdated, is not. He said he has been counseled that if a
current will is in conflict with a DD Form 93, the matter would

likely end up in litigation.
9:18: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he supports the proposed bill and
will vote "do pass,"” but is concerned that the decedent's w shes
are followed as closely as possible.

9:19: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noted that in the commttee packet is a
t wo- page handout with the heading, "Conport State Laws with DoD
Rul es on Disposition,” which addresses this issue and shows that
ten states recognhize in statute the DD Form 93 as the official

form He observed that absent that statutory reference, "it
goes back to the state's ... order of disposition of apparently
nonmlitary folks." He said he does not know if Alaska has
designated the DD Form 93 as the official docunent or not. He
suggested that the bill sponsor my consider having Al aska

designate the DD Form 93 as the official form
9: 20: 44 AM

VR. SAN SOUC said t hat handout COmes from t he
USAdM | itaryFam | i es. He said last year ten states recognized
in law the DD Form 93 as the official form He further related
that in 2009, this issue was taken on as one of the entity's top
ten priorities and, at that time, |awers said they thought nine
states had sufficient latitude in existing statute to recognize
the DD Form 93. He further relayed that eleven states are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 15, 2011



considering legislation this year to adopt the DD form 93 as the
official form and he said he thinks SB 33 has been crafted
expressly for that purpose - to honor the desires of the person
who has died while on active duty.

9:22:15 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
w shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:22:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to report CSSB 33(STA) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 33(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 92- LAO VETERANS LI CENSE PLATES

9:23:11 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the l|last order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 92, "An Act relating to special request Lao veteran
regi stration plates; and providing for an effective date.™

9:23:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN, as prine sponsor, introduced HB 92. He
said the bill would honor Hnong veterans who fought with and for
the United States during the Vietnam War. During that war, he
said, the CIA organized a Hmong arny in Laos, which perforned
i mportant conbat support mssions for the US mlitary,
including the rescue of US Ar Force pilots that were shot
down and the disruption of North Vietnanese supply lines along
the Ho Chi Mnh Trail. As a result, he said, the Hrong people
faced persecution and genocide after the U S wthdrew from
Sout heast Asi a. Many Hnong left Asia and noved to the U S.,
where they were granted asylum under the Indochina Mgration and

Ref ugee Assistance Act of 1975. Representative Petersen said
there is a growi ng Hhong population in Al aska, and HB 92 is one
small way for expressing appreciation for their service and

assi stance during the Vietnam War.
9:24:56 AM

CHAI R LYNN handed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 15, 2011



9: 25: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the |anguage on page 1,
lines 6-7, relates that the bill would comenorate the |icense
plate owner's service in conbat in support of US mlitary
operations in the Kingdom of Laos, whereas the sponsor statenent
indicates that the license plate recipients wuld recognize and
honor Lao veterans who fought in support of the U S He stated
his belief that the |anguage of the bill could be interpreted to
mean that Americans who fought woul d be included.

9:27:04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN expl ai ned that the intent of the bill is
to honor veterans of Laotian decent who have since immgrated to
Anmeri ca.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he thought that was the sponsor's

intent, but said the |anguage of the bill does not seemto limt
the issue of the license plates to those fornmer Laotians. He
recommended checking with the bill drafter to narrow the
| anguage.

9:29: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG reiterated that the current | anguage
may allow non-Laotians who fought in Laos in support of US.
mlitary operations to receive that Iicense. He suggested an
anmendnent nmay be necessary to clarify the sponsor's intent.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said although it was not his intention
to allow mlitary veterans who fought in Laos who were not
originally from Laos to qualify for the proposed |icense plate,
he surm sed they could order the license plate if they wanted to
honor their service in Laos.

9:32:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER remarked that <certification would be
different for soneone originally from Laos than it would be for
an Anmerican who fought there.

9:32: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that the words

"owner's service" on page 1, line 7, would nean that soneone
| easing a car would not be eligible. He then asked whether the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 15, 2011



sponsor would like to allow descendants to qualify, because, if
so, language to that effect would need to be added.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he is glad Representative Seaton
poi nted that out, because he said he would not want to exclude
soneone wanting to honor a relative who had served.

9:34: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN questioned what sort of docunentation a
person would have to bring to the Division of Mtor Vehicles

( DW) .

DAVI D BREMMER, Staff, Representative Pete Petersen, Al aska State
Legislature, on behalf of Representative Petersen, sponsor,
responded that several criteria have been set out by the federal
government under the Hnong Veterans' Naturalization Act of 2000,
whi ch exenpted Laotians who canme to the U S. from having to take
the English |anguage test and citizen test. He indicated that
al l owabl e docunentation [for the forner Laotian who fought for
the U S and is trying to obtain the proposed |icense plate] may
include: mlitary orders fromthe U S. governnent; an affidavit
signed by a mlitary officer; two affidavits from soldiers who
served with the Laotian; photographs of the Laotian in training
or with certain Laotian generals.

9:38:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said by the next bill hearing he would
like clarification regarding exactly who would qualify under HB
92, because he does not want these license plates to be given to
just anyone or for people to be sporting a plate and braggi ng
about sonething in which they were not involved, because that
woul d be di srespectful.

9:39: 25 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON directed attention to a sentence on
page 1, [beginning on line 10], which read as foll ows:

To be issued a registration plate under this
subsecti on, t he owner nmust pr esent evi dence
satisfactory to the departnent that the owner served
in conbat as required by this subsection.

9:40: 28 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 15, 2011



VICE CHAIR KELLER commended the bill sponsor for bringing the
bill forward and encouraged him to get further clarification.
He said the Hrong people were left with enem es at hone when the
U.S. pulled out of the war.

9:40: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rel ated his experience in the mlitary
to illustrate that "in conbat”" is a technical term He
expl ai ned that sonmeone may have been involved in conflict but
not have shot a gun, thus, he recomended that the sponsor
clarify whether that person would be incl uded.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER handed t he gavel back to Chair Lynn.
9:43:14 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he has heard good things about those from Laos
who noved to the U S. and have assimlated in this country. He

tal ked about other indigenous tribes, such as Mao and
Mont agnards, who were in the area in Vietnam and he asked the
bill sponsor if he would consider themin this bill.

9:46: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN noted that the term Montagnards was
coined by the French to nmean "nountain people.” He i ndicated
that the Hmong is a larger group that may incorporate sone of
t he ot hers.

CHAI R LYNN asked that the bill sponsor check to see if there are
any peoples calling thensel ves Montagnards who nay be interested
inthis or a simlar license plate.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to the chair, recomrended
that the bill be held for another hearing.

9:49: 48 AM

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration, said the DW does not oppose HB
92, but enphasized the inportance to the DW of the topic of
evidence that would be brought forth to the division. She
stated her understanding that wunder the bill, as currently
witten, anyone who served in Laos during that war would
qualify, not just those who are originally from Laos. Furt her,
she said she thinks the bill would need to be anended if the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 15, 2011



intent is to include descendants. |In response to Representative
Seaton's point that those who |eased a car would not qualify,
she suggested that the word "applicant's" could replace the word
"owner's"

CHAI R LYNN reconmended the comm ttee be careful when identifying
ethnic or racial groups in correlation with designating |icense
pl at es.

9:51: 52 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to Representative G uenberg, said she
believes the DW has the regulatory powers to carry out the
bill.

9:52:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked Ms. Brewster what docunentation is
required for other specialized |license plates.

M5. BREWSTER answered that, for exanple, to obtain a Gold Star
Fam |y plate, a person nust bring any docunent that has been
issued by the military or an obituary. She said the division

could use those criteria "as evidence of eligibility for the
pl ate."

9:54: 33 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

[HB 92 was hel d over. ]

9:55: 09 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:55
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 15, 2011



